
Mason County PUD No. 1 
Regular Board Meeting  

January 13, 2026 
1:00 p.m. 

 
 
 
 

1) Call the Regular Meeting to Order 
 

2) Public Comment- Members of the public wishing to comment may request permission to do so during the 
Public Comment portion of the agenda. Comments shall be limited to no more than 5 minutes per speaker. There 
will be no action or discussion of public comment items, although the board may defer to PUD management for 
any necessary response. 

 

3) Consent Agenda 
Minutes:    December 9, 2025 Rate Hearing & Regular Meeting 
   
   
Disbursements:   Accounts Payable Wire     $   851,657.34            

        Check Nos.  127675-127709  $   731,887.28 
     Check Nos.  127711-127819  $   695,401.22   
      
     Payroll Wire     $   260,487.57 
     Check Nos.  127710    $       2,742.57 

 
Grand Total      $2,542,175.98 

 

4) Business Agenda 
a. Approval of the 2026 Board Officers 
b. Approval of the 2026 Voting Delegates 
c. Approval of Resolution No. 2102 – Sole Source for Underground Cable 
d. Approval of Resolution No. 2103- Sole Source for Itron Meters 
e. Authorize the GM to sign Commerce Grant Contract for Utility Relocations 
f. Authorize the GM to sign Commerce Grant Contract for Shadowood Water System 
g. Authorize the GM to sign Commerce Grant Contract for Jorstad Substation 
h. November 2025 Financials  
i. Approve Change Order No. 1 for Shadowood Water Project 

 

5) Staff Reports 
a. General Manager 
b. District Treasurer 
c. Water Resource Manager 
d. Legal Counsel 

  

6) Correspondence  
7) Board Comments 
8) Other Business/Public Comment 

9) Executive Session may be held as authorized by the Open Public Meetings Act (RCW 42.30.110) 
10) Adjourn  

Join Zoom Meeting  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/858
69053743  

Meeting ID: 858 6905 3743  
1 (253) 215-8782 



 
 

 

2026 Calendar 

January 7-8  Public Power Council     Portland  
Jan 14-16  WPUDA Association Meeting   Olympia 
Jan 14   WPUDA Legislative Reception    Olympia 
February 4-5   Public Power Council      Portland 
Feb 11-13  WPUDA Association Meeting   Olympia 
Feb 11   WPUDA PUD Day on the Hill   Olympia 
Feb 23-26  APPA/WPUDA Legislative Rally   Washington D.C. 
March 4-5  Public Power Council      Portland 
Mar 18-20   WPUDA Association Meeting   Olympia 
Mar 27  WPUDA Water Committee/WWUC   Vancouver  
April 1-2  Public Power Council      Portland 
Apr 29-May 1 WPUDA Annual Conference   Suquamish 
May 6-7  Public Power Council      Portland 
May 14  WPUDA Strategic Planning Committee  Olympia 
May 18-21  NWPPA Annual Conference   Spokane 
May 29  Water Committee/WWUC     Olympia 
June 3-4  Public Power Council     Portland 
June 26-July 1 APPA National Conference    Boston, MA 
July 15-17  WPUDA Association  Meeting   TBD 
August 5-6  Public Power Council     Portland 
September 2-3 Public Power Council     Portland 
Sep 16-18  WPUDA Association Meeting   TBD 
Sep 30-Oct 2  WPUDA Water Workshop    Wenatchee 
October 7-8  Public Power Council     Portland 
Oct 15   WPUDA Budget Committee   Olympia 
November 4  Public Power Council Town Hall   Portland 
November 5  Public Power Council Annual Meeting  Portland 
Nov 18-20  WPUDA Association Meeting   Olympia 

     
  



Mason County Public Utility District No. 1  
Rate Hearing & Regular Board Meeting   

December 9, 2025, Potlatch, Washington 
 

Present:       Visitors:                                                                                               
Ron Gold, President                                                 Jan Morris, Customer 
Mike Sheetz, Vice President                                                     
Jack Janda, Board Secretary        
Kristin Masteller, General Manager      
Katie Arnold, District Treasurer  
Brandy Milroy, Water Resource Manager 
Rob Johnson, Legal Counsel 
                                     
CALL RATE HEARING TO ORDER: Ron called the public Rate Hearing to order at 1:00 p.m.  
 
Katie Arnold reviewed the proposed electrical rates for 2026. She stated that based on the proposed 
2026 budget, staff is recommending to reduce the previously approved electric rate increase of 4.75% 
down to 3% again in 2026, due to the grant funding the PUD has secured. This is the second year in a 
row that the grants have enabled the District to reduce the scheduled Cost-of-Service recommended rate 
and that staff has held the budget flat for several years and reduced some line items for 2026 to alleviate 
rate pressure. Despite the grant funding, Katie noted the factors that are driving a rate increase for 2026 
including Bonneville Power Administration’s increases to both power and transmission costs, the PUD’s 
capital projects expenses and local match requirements for the grant funding that has been secured, 
inflationary increases to labor, materials, insurance, and contracted services, and the PUD’s continued 
work to fund days cash-on-hand to meet the 90 day goal. Katie stated that the proposed electric rate 
increase would take effect on April 1, 2026 and that she developed communications materials explaining 
the need for the increase which she is discussing with PUD employees and posted on the PUD website. 
 
For the water business, staff also proposed a reduction in the scheduled water rate increase again for 
2026, for the second year in a row, also due to grant funding. The commission previously approved a 
Cost-of-Service recommended increase of 5% for 2026 and staff recommends reducing it to 3.5%. She 
stated that factors driving rate increases for the water business include the COSA showing the PUD was 
not adequately capturing revenues to cover the cost to deliver services to our customers and the need to 
continue to work toward achieving cost of service, an increase in operational and capital project costs 
including water system plan development and reviews, engineering expenses, fuel, services and labor 
expenses, and finally the significant increase in new regulatory requirements regarding water system 
testing and the expense to conduct those tests. She reviewed the increase in residential and irrigation 
rates and that the commercial rate would not increase since it is already at cost of service. She stated the 
new proposed water rate would take effect on January 1, 2026.  
 
There was no public comment at the rate hearing. At 1:12 p.m., Ron closed the rate hearing and called 
the regular meeting to order. 
 
CALL REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING TO ORDER- 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: None.  
 



Mason County Public Utility District No. 1  
Rate Hearing & Regular Board Meeting   

December 9, 2025, Potlatch, Washington 
 

 
 
APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA: 

Minutes:    November 25, 2025 Budget Workshop & Regular Meeting 
  December 2, 2025 Special Meeting 
   
Disbursements:   Accounts Payable Wire     $   107,621.92            

        Check Nos.  127597-127605  $       5,449.67 
     Check Nos.  127607-127674  $ 1,139,995.01  
       
     Payroll Wire     $   104,550.73 
     Check Nos.  127606    $       6,300.00 

Grand Total      $1,363,917.33 
 
Business Agenda: 
Adopt 2026 Budget for Water, Electric & Sewer– Jack made a motion to adopt the 2026 budgets as 
presented; Mike seconded the motion. It passed unanimously. 
 
Approve 2026 Strategic Work Plan– Jack made a motion to approve the 2026 strategic work plan as 
presented; Mike seconded the motion. It passed unanimously. 
 
Resolution No. 2098- 2026 Electric Rate Schedule – Jack made a motion to approve Resolution No. 
2098 as presented; Mike seconded the motion. It passed unanimously. 
 
Resolution No. 2099- 2026 Water Rate Schedule– Jack made a motion to approve Resolution No. 2099 
as presented; Mike seconded the motion. It passed unanimously.  
 
Resolution No. 2100- General Manager Compensation– Jack made a motion to approve Resolution 
No. 2100 as presented; Mike seconded the motion. It passed unanimously.  
 

Resolution No. 2101- Administrative Staff Compensation– Jack made a motion to approve Resolution 
No. 2101 as presented; Mike seconded the motion. It passed unanimously.  

Authorize the General Manager to sign the Purchase Order for the Bucket Truck with Custom 
Trucks– Jack made a motion to authorize the General Manager to sign the purchase order with Custom 
Trucks in the amount of $561,845.00; Mike seconded the motion. It passed unanimously.  

Cancel the December 23, 2025 Regular Board Meeting– Jack made a motion to cancel the December 
23rd regular board meeting; Mike seconded the motion. It passed unanimously.  

 

 

 
 



Mason County Public Utility District No. 1  
Rate Hearing & Regular Board Meeting   

December 9, 2025, Potlatch, Washington 
 

 
Staff Reports  
General Manager – Kristin reported that now that the 2026 budget and strategic plan are completed, 
staff is working on closing out grants and projects for the 2025 fiscal year. The PUD participated in the 
Christmas Parade last weekend. Kristin attended the EDC/Chamber Legislative Sendoff and said the PUD 
1 Grid Resilience Projects funding request was identified as a county priority for this session. She and Rob 
completed the agreement for the SCETrade EV credits program, which they will manage on behalf of the 
PUD through their partnership with Energy Northwest. Kristin has a PPC Executive Committee meeting 
tomorrow in Portland to meet with the BPA Administrator and executive team.   

District Treasurer – Katie gave an update on the seven FEMA grants that are in various stages from 
construction to Requests for Information. She anticipates getting several grant contracts in 2026 to start 
work in 2027.    

Water Resource Manager – Brandy provided updates on the Shadowood and Manzanita water storage 
projects.  

Legal –No report. 

Correspondence – The Public Power Council annual report was shared for commissioner viewing. 
 
Board Reports 
Mike – No report. 
 

Jack – Jack reported that this is his last month on the Energy Northwest executive committee but that 
he’ll continue to serve on the full board as long as the other commissioners agree that he should. He 
gave kudos to the General Manager, legal counsel and staff, as well as all of the PUD 1 employees, for 
having another safe year with no time loss and accomplishing so much work on the strategic plan. He 
also noted the impressive grant funding that has been secured this year. 
 

Ron – Reminded the commission about the WPAG meeting this Thursday. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – None. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – None. 
 
 
Adjournment: 1:43 p.m. 
 
 
              
Ron Gold, President  Mike Sheetz, Vice President             Jack Janda, Secretary 



















Type
CHK

0

Karnold

Format: Summary By Check
Sort By: Check/Direct Deposit

51217 /pro/rpttemplate/acct/2.64.1/pl/PL_EMP_CHECK_REGISTER.xml.rpt

Check/Direct Deposit: All
Employee: All

Journal:

Division: All

PARAMETERS  ENTERED:
Pay Date: 12/16/2025 To 12/16/2025

127710 2,742.57135 TIMOTHY BROWN 12/16/2025
Net Pay

Check Register
Pay Date:   12/16/2025 To 12/16/2025

Empl Name Pay Date Dir Dep/Check

MASON COUNTY PUD NO 1
Rev: 202303090323

01/07/2026 10:33:11 AM Payroll/Labor Page 1



Mod

PL
PL

TOTAL

Karnold51217 /pro/rpttemplate/acct/2.64.1/gl/GL_TRANS_DETAIL.xml.rpt

Extended Reference: No
Interface Detail: No

Group by Department: Yes

Module: PL
Journal Activity: All

Accounts With No Transactions: Yes

Sort By: Div/Acct
Date Selection: Period

Period: DEC 2025 To JAN 2026

Accounts: 0 131.2
Department: All

Activity: All

PARAMETERS  ENTERED:
Divsion: All

159,186.8201/02/26 94755 Check Print 0 2 PAYROLL
260,487.57

12/16/25 94451 Check Print 0 2 PAYROLL 101,300.75
Account: 0 131.2  CASH-GENERAL FUND (DISTRICT) Department: 0

Code

TRANSACTION DETAIL

DEC 2025 To JAN 2026
Date Journal Description Actv BU Project Jrnl Reference

MASON COUNTY PUD NO 1 Rev: 202401250617

GENERAL LEDGER
01/07/2026 10:30:59 AM Page: 1



2026 Board O icers  

 

• Board President – Ron Gold  
• Vice President – Mike Sheetz 
• Board Secretary – Jack Janda  

 



2026 Association Committee Delegates 
WPUDA COMMITTEES PRIMARY ALTERNATE 2ND ALTERNATE (optional)
Board of Directors Mike Sheetz Jack Janda Ron Gold
Managers Kristin Masteller Katie Arnold
Government Relations Mike Sheetz Kristin Masteller Ron Gold
Communications Kristin Masteller Jack Janda Mike Sheetz
Energy Mike Sheetz Jack Janda Ron Gold
Telecom Kristin Masteller Mike Sheetz Ron Gold
Water Mike Sheetz Brandy Milroy Ron Gold
WPAG Ron Gold Mike Sheetz Jack Janda

PPC Ron Gold Mike Sheetz Jack Janda

APPA Ron Gold Kristin Masteller Jack Janda

ENW Jack Janda Ron Gold Kristin Masteller

NWPPA Kristin Masteller Mike Sheetz
Kristin Masteller, Gov't Relations Mike Sheetz

SKOKOMISH WATERSHED ACTION TEAM Ron Gold Brandy Milroy
(SWAT) and WRIA

Hood Canal Coordinating Council Ron Gold Brandy Milroy



                         PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1    BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS           
                                               OF MASON COUNTY               MIKE SHEETZ, Commissioner 

                           N. 21971 Hwy. 101                    JACK JANDA, Commissioner          
                      Shelton, Washington 98584                          RON GOLD, Commissioner 

 

Regular Meeting – District Office/Potlatch 
A Resolution authorizing Sole Sourcing of Okonite Primary Underground Cable  
Date:  January 13, 2026 
No. 2102 

RESOLUTION NO.  2102 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MANAGER TO EXECUTE CONTRACT FOR 
OKONITE PRIMARY UNDERGROUND CABLE BASED UPON A SOLE SOURCE 

 
    WHEREAS, PUD No. 1 is in need of primary underground cable each year for electric department to meet 
the strategic goals of the District and maintain and improve reliability;  
 
    WHEREAS, Okonite is the manufacturer of the existing primary underground cable and this particular cable 
is the only quality of cable that meets the District’s specifications for new installations; AND it is important for 
compatibility with the existing primary underground cable; and 
 
    WHEREAS, RCW 39.04.280 provides that a local agency, by Resolution, may waive competitive bidding 
requirement when the purchase is clearly and legitimately limited to a single source of supply, or when the 
purchase involves special facilities or market conditions; and 
 
    WHEREAS, the Board finds that there is one vendor that will meet the District’s needs, and thus the sole 
source of supply, and that there is a special market condition because of the service territory of Okonite 
providers; and 
 
    WHEREAS, the Board finds it is appropriate to waive the competitive bidding requirements for the above 
reasons; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF PUD NO. 1 OF MASON COUNTY 
HEREBY RESOLVES as follows: 
 
1.  The Manager is authorized to enter into a contract with WESCO for Okonite Primary Underground Cable as 
set forth in the District’s annual strategic work plan and budget, and 
 
2.  The competitive bidding requirement for the primary underground cable is waived as this is a sole source 
purchase and involves special market conditions. 
 
 ADPOTED by the Board of Commissioners of Public Utility District No. 1 of Mason County, Washington at a 
regular meeting on January 13, 2026, the following commissioners being present and voting. 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Ron Gold, President 
_____________________________ 
Jack Janda, Secretary 
      _____________________________  
      Mike Sheetz, Vice President       



 DISTRIBUTOR AUTHORIZATION AGREEMENT 

 

 

  The Okonite company has authorized distribution channels across the US to help support 
their end users and customers on Okonite products. In the Pacific Northwest, Okonite has 
authorized Wesco-Portland Utility to be their sole source distributor for all Public Power 
entities in Oregon, Washington and N Idaho. This partnership has been in place for over 
thirty years and the Okonite-Portland team works closely with Wesco-Portland Utility to 
help our efforts to offer the best service and support to our end users. No other distributor 
has been authorized to sell Okonite cables in the Public Power sector for Pacific Northwest. 

If you need more information or have questions on why Okonite has chosen Wesco-
Portland Utility as their only authorized distributor for the territory, please contact Dave 
Wisniewski. 

 

 

     David Wisniewski 

District Manager – Pacific NW, Alaska, Western Canada 

Office 503-598-0598 x3508 

Cell 503-758-0169 

 

 

 

          



                         PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1    BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS           
                                               OF MASON COUNTY                              MIKE SHEETZ, Commissioner 

                           N. 21971 Hwy. 101                    JACK JANDA, Commissioner          
                      Shelton, Washington 98584                          RON GOLD, Commissioner 

 

Regular Meeting – District Office/Potlatch 
A Resolution authorizing Sole Sourcing of Electric & Water Service Meters 
Date:  January 13, 2026 
No. 2103 

 
RESOLUTION NO.  2103 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MANAGER TO EXECUTE CONTRACT FOR 
ITRON WATER & ELECTRIC SERVICE METERS BASED UPON A SOLE SOURCE 

 
    WHEREAS, PUD No. 1 is in need of numerous service meters each year for both the water and electric 
departments to meet the strategic goals of the District; 
 
    WHEREAS, Itron is the manufacturer and vendor which supplied the existing service meters which are 
compatible with our existing meter reading devices and software; AND it is important for compatibility with the 
existing equipment; and 
 
    WHEREAS, RCW 39.04.280 provides that a local agency, by Resolution, may waive competitive bidding 
requirement when the purchase is clearly and legitimately limited to a single source of supply, or when the 
purchase involves special facilities or market conditions; and 
 
    WHEREAS, the Board finds that there is one vendor that will meet the District’s needs, and thus the sole 
source of supply; and 
 
    WHEREAS, the Board finds it is appropriate to waive the competitive bidding requirements for the above 
reasons; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF PUD NO. 1 OF MASON COUNTY 
HEREBY RESOLVES as follows: 
 
1.  The Manager is authorized to enter into a contract with Itron for electric and water service meters as set forth 
in the District’s annual strategic work plan and budget, and 
 
2.  The competitive bidding requirement for the electric and water service meters is waived as this is a sole 
source purchase and involves special market conditions. 
 
 ADPOTED by the Board of Commissioners of Public Utility District No. 1 of Mason County, Washington at a 
regular meeting on January 13, 2026, the following commissioners being present and voting. 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Ron Gold, President 
_____________________________ 
Jack Janda, Secretary 
      _____________________________  
      Mike Sheetz, Vice President      
 



Partner/Dist. Name  
2111 N. Molter Road Address 
Liberty Lake, WA 99019 Address 
www.itron.com  URL  / email address 

December 2, 2025 

Dear Valued Itron Utility Customer, 

Itron and our authorized distributors are continually evaluating ways to better serve you and 

deliver the best service, support and buying experience possible. With your success in mind, 

please note that effective January 1, 2022, General Pacific (GenPac) is the only Authorized 

Itron Electric Distributor in Washington.  GenPac has received the necessary training and 
certification levels to represent Itron to our shared customers—and in this capacity, GenPac is 

the only company that is authorized to sell Itron electric meters in your area.  Itron does not 

have any other electric meter distributors in Washington who are authorized to sell standalone 
meters into the Public Power market and as such, is considered Sole Source. 

GenPac is an Authorized Itron Distributor in these states: WA, OR, northern CA, ID, western 
WY, AK. 

Depending on your state and local bidding laws, this letter may serve as sole source provider 
documentation for Itron products. As such, you may not be required to bid your Itron purchases. 

If you have any questions, or if I can provide any further information, please feel free to contact 
me directly. 

Sincerely, 

Brad Kreulen 

Senior Channel Sales Manager 

http://www.itron.com/


 

 

    

 
 
Grant to 

Mason County Public Utility District No. 1 

 

through 

 
The Local Community Projects Program 

 
 
For 

Mason PUD No. 1 Utility Relocation Project 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 26D05079-CB26-4E3B-87B1-7A0CAF54DF08



 

4 

 

FACE SHEET 

 
Grant Agreement Number: 25-96647-096 

Project Name: Mason PUD No. 1 Utility Relocation Project 
Washington State Department of Commerce 

Local Government Division 
Local Community Projects 

  

1. GRANTEE 2. GRANTEE Doing Business As (optional) 
Mason County Public Utility District No. 1 
21971 N HWY 101 
Shelton, Washington 98584-7446 

N/A  
  

3. GRANTEE Representative 4. COMMERCE Representative 
Katie Arnold 
Project Manager 
(360) 877-5249 
karnold@mason-pud1.org 

Dylan Godsey  
Program Manager 
(206) 454-2257  
dylan.godsey@commerce.wa.gov 

PO Box 42525 
1011 Plum Street SE 
Olympia, WA  98504-2525 

5. Grant Amount 6. Funding Source 7. Start Date 8. End Date 

$1,750,000.00 Federal:   State:   
Other:   N/A:  

Upon Final Signature June 30, 2027, if funds are not 
reappropriated; June 30, 2029, 
contingent on reappropriation 

9. 
 Award Method

 

Direct: ☒      Competitive: ☐ 

 

NOFO/RFX #   
N/A 

Proviso # 
Engrossed Substitute Senate 
Bill 5949, Laws of 2024, 
Chapter 375, Section 1018 

10. Tax ID # 11. SWV # 12. UBI # 13. UEI # 

91-6001048 SWV0028711-00 232000374 KD7HQJF4JNC9 

14. Grant Agreement Purpose 
The purpose of this performance-based Grant Agreement is to provide funding for Mason PUD No. 1Utility Relocation 
Project, a legislatively approved project that furthers the goals and objectives of utilities relocations as described in 
Attachment A – Scope of Work. 

COMMERCE, defined as the Washington State Department of Commerce, and the GRANTEE, as defined above, 
acknowledge and accept the terms of this Grant Agreement and attachments and have executed this Grant Agreement on 
the date below to start as of the date and year referenced above. The rights and obligations of both parties to this Grant 
Agreement are governed by this Grant Agreement and the following other documents incorporated by reference: Grant 
Agreement Terms and Conditions including Attachment A – Scope of Work,  Attachment B – Project Budget, Attachment 
C – Certification of Availability of Funds to Complete the Project, Attachment D – Certification of the Payment and 
Reporting of Prevailing Wages, Attachment E – Certification of LEED, application as submitted for grant funding, 
applicable Local Community Projects Program Notice of Funding Availability, and applicable Local Community Projects 
Program Guidelines (as they may be revised from time to time).  

FOR GRANTEE FOR COMMERCE 
 
  
Kristin Masteller, 
General Manager 
 
 
  
Date 

 
  
Mark K. Barkley, Assistant Director 
Local Government Division 
 
  
Date 
 
TEMPLATE APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY 
 
Lisa Koperski, Assistant Attorney General, on 07/23/2025 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: 26D05079-CB26-4E3B-87B1-7A0CAF54DF08

12/11/2025 | 8:58 AM PST



 

 

    

 
 
Grant to 

PUD 1 of Mason County 

 

through 

 
The Local Infrastructure Program 

 
 
For 

Mason County PUD No. 1's Water System Improvements 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 3F48BE30-825B-4396-8784-BF07BD3A5FE4



 

4 

 

FACE SHEET 

 
Grant Agreement Number: 26-96673-007 

Project Name: Mason County PUD No. 1's Water System Improvements 
Washington State Department of Commerce 

Local Government Division 
Local Infrastructure 

  

1. GRANTEE 2. GRANTEE Doing Business As (optional) 
PUD 1 of Mason County 
21971 N HWY 101 
Shelton, Washington 98584-7446 

N/A  
  

3. GRANTEE Representative 4. COMMERCE Representative 
Katie Arnold 
Director of Business Services 
(360) 877-5249 
karnold@mason-pud1.org 

Dylan Godsey  
Program Manager 
(206) 454-2257  
dylan.godsey@commerce.wa.gov 

PO Box 42525 
1011 Plum Street SE 
Olympia, WA  98504-2525 

5. Grant Amount 6. Funding Source 7. Start Date 8. End Date 

$1,039,840.00 Federal:   State:   
Other:   N/A:  

Upon Final Signature June 30, 2027, if funds are not 
reappropriated; June 30, 2029, 
contingent on reappropriation. 

9. 
 Award Method

 

Direct: ☒      Competitive: ☐ 

 

NOFO/RFX #   
N/A 

Proviso # 
 Substitute Senate Bill 5195, 
Laws of 2025, 
Chapter 414, Section 1039 

10. Tax ID # 11. SWV # 12. UBI # 13. UEI # 

91-6001048 SWV0028711-00 232000374 KD7HQJF4JNC9 

14. Grant Agreement Purpose 
The purpose of this performance-based Grant Agreement is to provide funding for Mason County PUD No. 1's Water 
System Improvements, a legislatively approved project that furthers the goals and objectives of treatment installation and 
reservoir construction as described in Attachment A – Scope of Work. 

COMMERCE, defined as the Washington State Department of Commerce, and the GRANTEE, as defined above, 
acknowledge and accept the terms of this Grant Agreement and attachments and have executed this Grant Agreement on 
the date below to start as of the date and year referenced above. The rights and obligations of both parties to this Grant 
Agreement are governed by this Grant Agreement and the following other documents incorporated by reference: Grant 
Agreement Terms and Conditions including Attachment A – Scope of Work,  Attachment B – Project Budget, Attachment 
C – Certification of Availability of Funds to Complete the Project, Attachment D – Certification of the Payment and 
Reporting of Prevailing Wages, Attachment E – Certification of LEED, application as submitted for grant funding, 
applicable Local Infrastructure Program Notice of Funding Availability, and applicable Local Infrastructure Program 
Guidelines (as they may be revised from time to time).  

FOR GRANTEE FOR COMMERCE 
 
  
Kristin Masteller, 
General Manager 
 
  
Date 

 
  
Mark K. Barkley, Assistant Director 
Local Government Division 
 
  
Date 
 
TEMPLATE APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY 
 
Lisa Koperski, Assistant Attorney General, on 07/23/2025 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: 3F48BE30-825B-4396-8784-BF07BD3A5FE4

12/30/2025 | 8:20 AM PST







           PUD1 – Executive Summary – November 2025 

This report summarizes information on the current financial status of Mason County 
PUD No. 1 for the month of November 2025: 

• Work in Progress:  
o Grant Applications – Ongoing 
o CEIP – 2026-2029 
o 2026 Budget 

 
• Completed Projects: 

o 2025 Fuel Mix  
o 2024 Financial, Accountability, and Federal Single Audit 
o 2024 Annual Report (Due 05/30/25) 
o 2025 Budget 
o 2024 Privilege Tax Return (Due 02/25/25) 
o 2024 Form 7 (Due March 31, 2025) 
o 2022 / 2023 Accountability Audit 
o 2024 EIA Report (Due 04/30/25) 
o Pole Attachment Rate Update 
o DWSRF Project Applications 

 
 
 
Financial Highlights: 

• Revenue – Gross Revenue was $1,219,893 the month of November 2025. 
• Expenditures –Gross expenditures were $1,411,601 for the month of November 2025. 
• As of November, the PUD has $1,020,605 grant reimbursements outstanding for ongoing 

projects, which is an equivalent of about 35 days of our cash on hand. 

 

Financial Metrics as Compared with Prior Year: November 
2025 

November 
2024 

Total General Cash and Investments  $943,548 $1,071,843 
 

Current Ratio (Current Assets/Current Liabilities)  1.46 to 1 1.50 to 1 
 

Debt Service Coverage (O&M/ Debt Service) 3.07 3.32 
Long-Term Debt to Net Plant 18% 22% 
Total Debt to Equity Ratio (Total Liabilities/Total Equity)  36% 34% 

 
Long Term Debt to Equity Ratio  
(Long Term Debt / Total Equity) 

23% 27% 

Times Interest Earned Ratio  
(Earnings before Interest & Taxes/Total Interest)  

5.06  5.20 

Cash on Hand   
(Total Available Cash/Average Daily Costs)  

38 Days (General) 
145 Days (All Funds) 

42 Days (General) 
145 Days (All Funds) 



Electric Water Sewer Totals

Total Revenue 968,021.15$        250,891.76$      979.83$             1,219,892.74$      
Budgeted 834,019.67$        237,438.33$      1,018.00$          1,072,476.00$      
Difference (-/+) 134,001.48$        13,453.43$        (38.17)$              147,416.74$         
% of Budget 116% 106% 96% 114%

Total Expenditures 1,215,964.61$    195,546.25$      90.16$               1,411,601.02$      
Budgeted 1,156,319.80$    204,478.96$      478.10$             1,361,276.86$      
Difference (-/+) 59,644.81$          (8,932.71)$         (387.94)$            50,324.16$           
% of Budget 105% 96% 19% 104%

Net Operating Margins (247,943.46)$      55,345.51$        889.67$             (191,708.28)$        
Budgeted (322,300.13)$      32,959.37$        539.90$             (288,800.86)$        
Difference (-/+) 74,356.67$          22,386.14$        349.77$             97,092.58$           
% of Budget 77% 168% 165% 66%

 

Mason County PUD No 1

                               Budget Summary by Division For the Month Ended November 30, 2025



Electric Water Sewer Totals

Total Revenue 10,715,683.93$    2,987,053.16$    11,027.30$        13,713,764.39$    
2025 Budget 11,676,446.00$    3,089,780.00$    12,399.00$        14,778,625.00$    
Difference (-/+) (960,762.07)$         (102,726.84)$      (1,371.70)$         (1,064,860.61)$     
% of Budget 92% 97% 89% 93%

Total Expenditures 9,796,231.82$       2,384,013.63$    8,798.06$          12,189,043.51$    
2025 Budget 11,196,314.00$    2,680,718.00$    9,606.00$          13,886,638.00$    
Difference (-/+) (1,400,082.18)$     (296,704.37)$      (807.94)$            (1,697,594.49)$     
% of Budget 87% 89% 92% 88%

Net Operating Margins 919,452.11$          603,039.53$        2,229.24$          1,524,720.88$       
2025 Budget 480,132.00$          409,062.00$        2,793.00$          891,987.00$          
Difference (-/+) 439,320.11$          193,977.53$        (563.76)$            632,733.88$          
% of Budget 191% 147% 80% 171%

Cash Flow
Beginning Cash (General Fund) 122,716.91            91,126.18            4,195.20            218,038.29            
Net Operating Margin (Excluding Depreciation) 2,138,566.80         4,609,346.47       2,171.50            6,750,084.77         
Cash Transferred to / from Special Funds (807,912.41)           (399,245.80)         (438.11)              (1,207,596.32)        
Change in Accounts Receivable 401,447.87            (119,566.62)         2,279.28            284,160.53            
Change in Accounts Payable 2,903,159.02         (6,961.27)             0.00 2,896,197.75         
Cash Expended on Utility Plant (1,289,248.44)        (184,823.64)         0.00 (1,474,072.08)        
Change in CWIP (3,314,662.97)        (3,894,323.89)     (4,012.67) (7,212,999.53)        
Ending Cash (General Fund) 154,066.78            95,551.43            4,195.20            253,813.41            

Mason County PUD No 1

                       Budget Summary by Division for the Eleven Months Ended November 30, 2025



                             PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS           

                                               OF MASON COUNTY                              MIKE SHEETZ, Commissioner 

                           N. 21971 Hwy. 101                    JACK JANDA, Commissioner          

                      Shelton, Washington 98584                          RON GOLD, Commissioner 

 

(360) 877-5249     (800) 544-4223 FAX (360) 877-9274 

www.mason-pud1.org 

 

PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT 
 

CHANGE ORDER FORM 

 

NO. 01 

 

 

The following changes are hereby incorporated into this Contract: 

 

A. Description of Change: 

Extension of completion date from March 23, 2026, to June 03, 2026. 

 

 

B. Contract Price Adjustment: 

 

As a result of this Change Order, the total Contract shall be increased/decreased by the sum of  

$    , plus sales tax, which the amount Contractor acknowledges is full and 

complete compensation for the Contract Work including changes incorporated by this Change Order. 

 

This Change Order shall not provide any basis for any other payments to or claims by the Contractor as a 

result of or arising out of the performance of the work described herein. The new total revised Contract 

Price is $    , including sales tax. 

 

 

C. Time of Completion:  

 

The time of completion shall be increased/decreased by 73 calendar days. The revised completion date shall 

be June 03, 2026.  

 

D. Except as specifically provided herein, all other Contract terms and conditions shall remain unchanged. 

 

 

CONTRACTOR      PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 OF MASON COUNTY 

 

Company: JMG Constructors, LLC    

Accepted by:       Accepted by:       

Title:        Title: General Manager     

Date:        Date:        

 



 

 Confidential 

 

 

 

 
 
Consigned Allowances Statement 

 
Date of Statement: December 29, 2025 

Auction Name: Washington Auction #12 December 2025 

 
Auction Participant Information: 

Entity Legal Name: Public Utility District No. 1 of Mason County 

 
Auction Information: 

Settlement Price (Current Auction): $70.86 

Total Allowances Consigned (2025 Vintage): 3,909 

Total Consigned Allowances Sold: 3,909 

Total Auction Proceeds Payable: $276,991.74 
 

Payment of proceeds for consigned allowances will be sent as directed according to the most 

recent wiring instructions confirmed within the Compliance Instrument Tracking System Service 

(CITSS).  

 

Payment will be sent between the hours of 9:00 AM Pacific Time (PT) on Tuesday, December 

30, 2025 and 9:00 AM PT on Wednesday, December 31, 2025 and is anticipated to be received 

no later than 3:00 PM PT on Wednesday, December 31, 2025 



A crew from the Mason County PUD, in
support of the Jefferson County PUD,
works to replace a power pole and
reconnect the power lines after a tree fell
onto the wires and damaged the pole at
the corner of Discovery Road and Cape
George Road, near the Discovery Bay Golf
Course. Powerful winds on Tuesday and
early Wednesday morning knocked out
power across the Peninsula. The majority
had been restored by Wednesday. (Steve
Mullensky/for Peninsula Daily News)

PHOTO

Reconnecting power

By Steve Mullensky For Peninsula Daily News

Thursday, December 18, 2025 7:31am ❙ NEWS AS SEEN ON INSTAGRAM...

JEFFERSON COUNTY

© 2025, Peninsula Daily News + Sound Publishing, Inc. + Black Press Media

Subscribe ❘ Sign-Up for Peninsula Daily News Newsletters ❘ Media Solutions ❘ Terms of Use ❘ Privacy Policy ❘

Contact Us ❘ Accessibility

A crew from the Mason County PUD, in

support of the Jefferson County PUD, works

to replace a power pole and reconnect the

power lines after a tree fell onto the wires

and damaged the pole at the corner of

Discovery Road and Cape George Road, near

the Discovery Bay Golf Course.

Powerful winds on Tuesday and early

Wednesday morning knocked out power

across the Peninsula. The majority had

been restored by Wednesday.

https://www.peninsuladailynews.com/news/
https://www.peninsuladailynews.com/tag/instagram/
https://www.peninsuladailynews.com/tag/jefferson-county/
https://www.peninsuladailynews.com/
https://www.peninsuladailynews.com/
http://www.soundpublishing.com/
https://www.blackpressmedia.com/
https://www.peninsuladailynews.com/subscribe/
https://www.peninsuladailynews.com/newsletters/
https://www.soundpublishing.com/media-solutions/
https://www.peninsuladailynews.com/terms-of-use/
https://www.peninsuladailynews.com/privacy/
https://www.peninsuladailynews.com/contact/
https://www.peninsuladailynews.com/accessibility/

	Agenda 01-13-2026.pdf
	Minutes 12-09-25 Rate Hearing and Board Meeting.pdf
	Check Register.pdf
	Check Register.pdf
	Payroll Register.pdf
	Sheet - 1

	Payroll Register 2.pdf
	Sheet - 1


	Board Officers 2026.pdf
	voting delegates.pdf
	2102 - Sole Source for Underground Cable (2026).pdf
	2102 - Sole Source for Underground Cable (2026).pdf
	2102 - Sole Source for Underground Cable (2026)

	Sole Source re Okonite Distribution_PNW.pdf

	2103 - Sole Source for Itron Meters (2026).pdf
	2103 - Sole Source for Itron Meters (2026)
	GenPac Sole Source Letter_120225

	Utility Relocation.pdf
	FACE SHEET

	Shadowood.pdf
	FACE SHEET

	Commerce Jorstad Substation.pdf
	November 2025 Financials.pdf
	PUD1 - Executive Summary -March 2021
	Copy of PUD No 1 Budget Summary (002)
	November 2025
	11-30-25 YTD


	Shadowood_CO 1 01-07-2026.pdf
	ConsignedAllowancesStatement_20251229.pdf
	Reconnecting power _ Peninsula Daily News.pdf

